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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes to financial statements, including a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2019, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 27 in the financial statements which indicate that the Company incurred a net
loss of INR 11281 lacs during the year ended March 31, 2019 and, as on that date, the Company’s total
liabilities exceeded its total assets by INR 45,233 lacs and the company is in the process of preparing and
getting approval of resolution plan (in light of expected cash flow issues arising due to loan repayment
schedule. This condition, along with other matters as set forth in Note 30(a), 30(b) indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to

a) Note 28 in the financial statements regarding recoverable value of the Intangible Assets (based on
valuation assessment and legal opinion) which depends upon the timing and quantum of expected
compensation inflows from arbitration proceeding initiated by the Company against NHAI
(substantiated by the legal opinion obtained by the Company) for compensation for loss of
revenue (under clause 41.3 of the Concession Agreement) arising as a result of change in law.

b) Note 29(b) inthe financial statement regarding determination of useful life of the Intangible Assets
considering six laning of the project and impact on the carrying value of Intangible Asset if six laning
is not done.

c) Note 30(b) in the financial statement regarding non-payment of revenue share to NHAI

d) Note 27 in the financial statements regarding accelerated loan repayment schedule and
Company’s discussion with the lenders regarding resolution plan.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s

Response
Significant Estimates associated with provision for | We assessed the independent agency’s report on
major maintenance expenses roughness test and the Company’s process to

estimate timing and quantum of future major
maintenance activities.

We have considered the terms of concession
agreement and independent agency’s report to
validate the management estimates.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s , but does

not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appllcable related
safeguards. Y »“”z,\
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
accounts

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statement- Refer note 30 & 31 to financial statements.

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Luthra & Luthra LLP
Chartered Accountants

Reg. No. 002081N / N500092

%

Naresh Agraw
Place: New Delhi Partner |~
Date: 06.05.2019 M.No: 504922 \,,é”
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

a. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b. All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous years in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c.  Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, Company does not have any immovable property.

As per the information and explanations given to us, inventories have been physically verified at
reasonable interval during the year by the Management. The discrepancies noticed on verification
between the physical stock and book records were not material and have been properly dealt with
in the books of accounts.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given/make any loan, investment, guarantee and security and accordingly provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Act are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us the company has not accepted deposits.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the
Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any
other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable on account of the above dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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8.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no due on account of income

tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax which have not been

deposited on account of dispute

As per our verification of books of account and confirmations received from banks, the Company

has delayed in repayment of loans or borrowing to banks and financial institutions during the year,

refer details below.

Bank Name Principal Due Date | Payment date Delay (in

Amount Due Days)
Andhra Bank 40,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Andhra Bank 40,00,000 1-Jul-18 7-Sep-18 68
Andhra Bank 40,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
Andhra Bank 40,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
Bank of Baroda 50,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Bank of Baroda 50,00,000 1-Jul-18 7-Sep-18 68
Bank of Baroda 50,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
Bank of Baroda 50,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 30-Apr-18 20-Jun-18 51
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 31-May-18 12-Jul-18 42
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 30-Jun-18 13-Aug-18 44
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 31-Jul-18 7-Sep-18 38
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 31-Aug-18 14-Sep-18 14
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 30-Sep-18 16-Nov-18 47
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 31-Oct-18 11-Dec-18 41
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 30-Nov-18 29-Dec-18 29
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 31-Dec-18 16-Jan-19 16
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 97,25,000 31-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 20
Bank of Baroda-Working Capital Loan 96,25,000 28-Feb-19 14-Mar-19 14
Dena Bank 40,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Dena Bank 40,00,000 1-Jul-18 7-Sep-18 68
Dena Bank 40,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
Dena Bank 40,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
IDBI 1,60,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
IDBI 1,60,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
IDBI 1,60,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
IDBI 1,60,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
IIFCL 75,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
IIFCL 75,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
IIFCL 75,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
IIFCL 75,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
Indian Bank 75,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Indian Bank 75,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
Indian Bank 75,00,000 1-Oct-18 9—Noy—18 39
Indian Bank 75,00,000 1-Jan-19 50
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Indian Overseas Bank 1,50,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Indian Overseas Bank 1,50,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
Indian Overseas Bank 1,50,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
Indian Overseas Bank 1,50,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
Oriental Bank of Commerce 50,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Oriental Bank of Commerce 50,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
Oriental Bank of Commerce 50,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
Oriental Bank of Commerce 50,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
Punjab & Sind Bank 40,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Punjab & Sind Bank 40,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
Punjab & Sind Bank 40,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
Punjab & Sind Bank 40,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
State Bank of India 40,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
State Bank of India 40,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
State Bank of India 40,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
State Bank of India 40,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
United Bank Of India 50,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
United Bank Of India 50,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
United Bank Of India 50,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
United Bank Of India 50,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50
Vijaya Bank 75,00,000 1-Apr-18 13-Jun-18 73
Vijaya Bank 75,00,000 1-Jul-18 10-Sep-18 71
Vijaya Bank 75,00,000 1-Oct-18 9-Nov-18 39
Vijaya Bank 75,00,000 1-Jan-19 20-Feb-19 50

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loan during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided managerial remuneration during the
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.




ARSITUTHRA LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

15, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

For Luthra & Luthra LLP
Chartered Accountants

Reg. No. 002081N / N500092

G

Naresh Agrawal
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 06.05.2019 M.No: 504922
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada
Expressways Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 315t March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Luthra & Luthra LLP
Chartered Accountants

Reg. No. 002081N / N500092

Naresh Agrawal
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 06.05.2019 M.No: 504922
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GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
Batance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

U45201KA2009PTCO50109
Amaount In INR Lakhs
Note As At As At
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
() Property, plant and equipment 3 142.91 123.64
(b} Other Intangible assets 4 204,361,92 209,003.77
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 7 74,95 73.43
{d) Other Non Current Assets 8y 13,69 16.00
Total Non-Current Assets 204,593.47 209,216.84
Current Assets
{a) Inventories S 150.26 57.00
{b} Financial Assets
(i} Cash & Cash Equivalents 5 1,522.62 1,406.56
{ii) Loans 6 0.68 4.03
(iii} Other Financial Assets 74} 1,512.37 2,266.23
{c) Current Tax Assets {Net) 10 20.3% 5.00
(d) Other Current Assets 8 {ii} 599.08 33153
Total Current Assets 3,805.40 4,070.35
TOTAL ASSETS 208,398.87 213,287.19
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 500,00 500.00
[b) Cther Equity 12 {45,732.98) {34,452.85)
Total Equity (45,232.98) {33,952.85)
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 13 178,793.85 188,389.70
{b} Provisions 15 (i} 9,266.25% 23.29
Total Non-Current Liabilities 188,060.10 188,412.99
Current Liabilities
{a) Financiat Liabilities
(i) Trade payables -
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19.62 -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 14 47,160.11 32,784.91
and small enterprises
{3ii) Other Financial Liabilities i5 14,789.78 9,257.84
{b} Other current liabilities i7 728.13 396.17
(c) Provisions 16 (ii) 2,874.11 16,388.13
Total Current Liabilities 65,571.75 58,827.05
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 208,398.87 213,287.19
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-43

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

in terms of our report attached
For Luthra & tuthra LLP
Chartered Accountants

Reg. No. 002081N / N500092
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Partner
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Date: 06.05.2029

For and on behalf of

Chairman
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GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2019

U45201KA2009PTC0501069
: Amount in INR Lakhs
Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Income
Revenue from Operation 18 29,652.97 26,238.89
Other Income 19 5,471.97 46.70
Total Income 35,124.94 26,285.59
Expenses
Operating expenses 20 13,147.05 14,064.96
Employee benefits expense 21 295,23 311.22
Finance costs 22 26,479.68 25,450.14
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 5,051.04 4,517.42
Qther expenses 24 1,433.22 . 1,448.30
Total Expenses 46,406.22 45,792.04
Profit / (Loss} for the year before taxation {211,281.28) {19,506.45)
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax - -
{2} Deferred Tax - -
Profit / (Loss) for the year after tax {11,281.28) {19,506.45}
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gain/{loss) in respect of defined benefit plan 1.15 7.79
1.15 7.79
Total comprehensive Income for the period {11,280.13) (19,498.66)
Earning per Equity Share:
- Basic 26 (225.63) (390.13)
- Diluted 26 {225.63) (390.13)
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-43

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Luthra & Luthra LLP
Chartered Accountants

Rleg. No. 002081N / N500092

Naresh Agrawal
Parther
{M.No.504922)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06.05.2019

For and on behalf of

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited

D

Chairman
DIN: 00082228 .

sl

Brajesh Kumar Tiwary
Chief Financial Officer

Arun éumar Sharma™

Director
DIN: 02281905

eta Mahajan
Company Secretary
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A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit / {Loss) for the period
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and Amortisation
Finance Charges
Qverlay Expenses
Loss on Write-off Assets
Interest Income on Bank deposit and others
Unrealised Profit on Construction Cost

Adjustments for Movement in Working Capitat:

Decrease / (Increase) in Financial Assets and other non Current Assets
Decrease f {Increase} in Inventories, Financial Assets and other Current Assets

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase / {Decrease) in Provision

Increase [ {Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities and Retention Money

Cash From/{Used tn) Operating activities
Tax {Paid)/Refund
MNet Cash From/f{Used tn) Operating activities

. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase / Addition to Fixed Assets
Interest income on Bank deposit and others
Cash From/(Used in) Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increasef{Decrease) Loan received from Related Party
Interest paid on Rupee Term Loan
QOther Finance Charges Paid
Repayment of Term Loan and Working Capital Loan

Cash From/{Used In) Financing Activities

Net Increase /Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the period
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the period

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents as at:
Cash in hand
Balances with the scheduled banks:
- In Current accouats

- In Deposit accounts

Note:-

Antount in INR Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rupees Rupees
{11,280.13} (19,498.56}
5,051.04 4,517.42
26,479.68 25,450.14
- 2,876.78
- 139.54
(60.74) {36.03)
(33.74} {16.94)
20,156.12 13,432.26
0.79 69.70
397.53 {462.41)
10,809.34 10,441.59
{5.439.75) 2.51
331.95 {399.55}
26,255.98 23,084.11
(15.38) 26.83
26,240.60 23,110.94
{394.72) {232.39)
59,63 35.80
{335.10) {196.59)
(0.00} 300.00
(20,779.15) (18,367.18)
(269.79) {236.84)
(4,740.50) {4,547.00)
(25,789.44) (22,851.02)
116.06 63.33
1,406.56 1,343.23
1,522.62 1,406.56
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
214.68 161.08
604.45 670.67
703.49 574.81
1,522.62 1,406.56

1) Effective April 1, 2017, the company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which requires entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
staternents to evaluate changes in llabilities arising from financing activities, Including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting
inclusion of a reconciliatfon between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure

requirement. The reconciliation is given as below:

Particulars 1-Apr-18 Cash Flow Non Cash Changes 31-Mar-19
Long Term External Borrowing 156,531.35 {4,740.50) 18.45 151,809.31
Related Parties Borrowing 21,213.33 {0.00) 2,266.12 23,479,45
Convertible Preference Shares {Unsecured) 15,367.06 - 1,641,59 17,008.65

In terms of our report attached
For Luthra & Luthra LLP
Chartered Actountants

Reg. Mo. 002081N / N500092

Naresh Agrawal
Partner
(M.No.504522)

Place: New Dethi
Date: 06.05.2019

For and on behaif of

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited

Chairman
DiN: 00082228

:%‘aéesh Kumar Tiwary

Chief Financial Officer

Arun Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN: 02281905

J{,&
PN

m; Mahajan

Company Secretary
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Amount in INR Lakhs

Equity Share Capital

As at April 01, 2017

500.00

Share Capital Issued during the year

As at March 31,2018

500.00

Share Capital Issued during the period

As at March 31,2019

500.00

B. Other Equity

Amount in INR Lakhs

Equity component of financial instrument

Preference shares

Related Party Loans

Retained Earning

Other
Comprehensive
Income

Total

As at April 01, 2017

22,052.27

26,104.37

{66,263.25)

1.29

{18,105.32)

Net Profit/{Loss)

{19,506.45)

- {19,506.45)

Actuarial {gain)/loss in respect of

defined benefit plan

7.79

7.79

Equity component of Loan taken during
the period

3,151.13

- 3,151.13

As-at March 31,2018

22,052.27

29,255.49

(85,769.69}

9.09

(34,452.85)

Net Profit

(11,281.28)

- (11,281.28)

Actuarial (gain}/loss in
defined benefit plan

respect  of

1.15

1.15|

As at March 31,2019

22,052.27

29,255.49

(97,050.97)

10.24

{45,732.98)

In terms of our report attached
For Luthra & Luthra LLP
Chartered Accountants

Reg. No, 002081N / N50G0092

W

Naresh Agrawal
Partner
{ML.NG.504922)

Place: New Deihi
Date: 06.05.2019

For and on behalf of
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited

b

O BangaruRaju
Chairman
DIN: 00082228

Chief Financial Officer

Arun Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN: 02281905

Wy
-

weta Mahajan
Company Secretary
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2.1

22

3}

b)

Corporate information

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (‘the Company’), was incorporated on June 11, 2009. The Company is a
Speciat Purpose Vehicle which has entered into a Design, Construction, Development, Finance, Operation and Maintenance contract
i.e. Service Concession Agreement on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer ("DBFOT"} asis with National Highways Authority
of India {'NHAI'} in respect of Nationai Highway - § {NH-9) from km 40.000 to km 221.50C in the State of Andhra Pradesh and
Telangana. .

As of Mar 31; 2019 GMR infrastructure Limited along with GMR Highways Limited holds 0% of the equity share capital in the Company
and the balance 10% is held by Punj Lioyd Limited.

The Cornpany has achieved cormpletion of the Project on 20th Dacember, 2012 and started ils commercial operations.

The registered office address of the Company is 25/1, Skip House, Museum Road, Bangalore-560025,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention
on the acerual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
{the "Act’) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendmant rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued zccounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
o an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees [INR),
Surmmary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

Assets and Liabifities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non—current based upon the requirements of
Schedute # notified under the Companies Act, 2013,

An.asset has been classified as current if

(a) it is expected to be realized in, or is.intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; or

{b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

" {c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the repcftfng date; or

(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least tweive months after
the reporting date. All other assets have been classified as nen-current,

A liabifity has been classified as current when

{a) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normat operating cycle; or

{k:) it 15 heid primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

{c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

{d} the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting
date. All other liabilities have been classified as non-current.

The cperating cycle is the time hetween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
company's has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Foreign currency and derivative transactions
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is company’s functional currency.

foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the respective transactions between the
functional currency and the foreign currency.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettied at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing on that date. Gains / losses arising on account of realisation / settlement of foreign currency transactiens and on translation
of foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

£xchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or an reporting ‘s monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initialijr recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income of as
expenses in the year in which they arise.

Non— monelary items which are carried in terms of historical cost dencminated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rale at the date of the transaction; and non—-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other simifar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of nen-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCi or
profit or loss are also recognised in GCH or profit or loss, respectively).
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<

d)

e

{a} Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settiement are accounted for in the
Statement of Profit & toss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as the case may be, except those
relating to long-term foreign currency monetary items, .

{&} Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or before 31 March 2016;
Exchange differences on long-term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the
carrying cost of the assets and depreciated over the balance Jife of the assets | In other cases, exchange differences are sccumulated in
a "Foreign Currency Monetary ltem Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance period of such long-term foreign
currency monetary item by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods.

Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 2016:
The exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency working capital loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April
2016 is charged off or credited to profit & loss account under ind AS.

Fair value measurement

The Company's measures finaacial instruments at fair value at each balance sheat date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to self an asset or paid ta transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sel! the asset
or transfer the hability takes place either:

i} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Eability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company's

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financiai asset takes into account a market particigant's ability to generate economic henefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use oz by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use,

The Company's uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observakle inguts and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All ‘assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valie meassrement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadiusted) in active markets for identical assets ar lizhitities

Level 7 — Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or fizbitity, either directly (i.e. as
prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

iLevel 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabifities that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs).

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company’s determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels-in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation [based on the lowest level Input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow Lo the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. The Company has concluded that it is the principai in all of its revenue arrangements.

Toll Revenue is recognised on usage of public service.

Other interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amcunt outstanding and the rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at a'cquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumuiative impairment. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

{a} it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them separately based
on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recegnised in profit
or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if
the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note xx and xx regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assurmptions and provisions for further information about the recorded decommissioning provision,
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f)

g)

Gains or losses arising from de~recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net
disposable proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss whan the asset is
derecognized.

_ Further, When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and

equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection {as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of property, plant and equipment and whose use is expected to be irregular
are capitalized as property, plant and equipment.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, ie, when the company intends to use these during more than a
period of 12 months.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset {net of residuat value,
in accordance with the useful lives prescribed under Schedule §i to the Companles Act, 2013 which are as below:

- Plant and equipments 4-15 years
- Office equipments 5 years
- Furniture ang fixtures 10 years
- Vehicles 8-10 years
- Computers 3 years

Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on assets
sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off. Modification or
extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over
the remaining useful life ofthat asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets )

Intangible assets comprise Carriageways and computer software, Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date
of amalgamation. Fallowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumuiated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The usefut lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the usefu economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired, The amortisation peried and the amortisation method for an intangibie asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
patiern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and aré treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amaortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognisad in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecogaition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the staterment of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Carriageways is being amortised over concession period on proportionate revenue method, Computer software is being amortwed
over a period of 6 years on a straight line basis.

The above periods also represent the management estimated economic useful life of the respective intangible assets.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current ang deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid fo the tax authorities in accordance with the income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and Habilities are measured at the amount éxpected to be recovered from or paid to the texation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date. The tax rates and tax {aws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date,

Current income tax relating to items recogaised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or foss (either in other comprehensive -
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which agplicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws} that have been enacted or substantively.gnacted at the reporting date.
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h)

k)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temiporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utifised.

The lCarrying amaunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer prebable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss [either in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legaliy enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Barrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of anciliary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. Ali other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period they oceur,

Inventories .
Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at tower of cost and net realizable value on First In First Qut basis.

Net reatizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale,

Lease

Finance Leases:

Whare the Company is the lessee

Finance teases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially afl the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalized a% the Inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of
minimum Igéase payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
athieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liahility. finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.- Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of fease are capitalized.d on an
accruai basis as per the terms of agreements entered into with lessees,

A teased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful fife of tha asset. However, if there is no reasonabie certainty that
the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the fease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over

the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating Leases:

Where the Company is the lessee

Lease rentals are recogrized as an expenses on a straight line basis with reference to lease terms and other considerations except
where- .

(i} Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefit derlved from the asset taken or given on lease.;
or

{ii) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general infiation to compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationary cost increases

Lands obtained on leases, where there is no reasonable certainity that the Company will obtain ownershp by the end of the lease term
shall generally be classified as finance leases. The minimum lease pyayments include upfront premium paid plus any annual recurring
lease rental which is amortized over the lease term.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be imgaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s orcashgenerating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverabie
amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverahie amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to-its recoverabie amount. In assessing vakie In use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their preseht value using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. if no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The company bases its impairmeant calculation on detaifed budgets and forecast

calculations which are prepared separately for each of the company's cash—

generating units to which the individuai assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are genefally covering a period of
five years. for longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year,

impairment fosses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously revalued tangible
fixed assets, where the revatuation was taken to revzluaticn reserve. in this case, the impairment is also recognized in the revaluation
reserve up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

Afler impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount‘of the.
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An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
no jenger exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used 1o determine the assets
recoverabie amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversai is limited so that the cafr\jing amount of the asset
does Aot exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and Loss unless
the asset is carrled at a revalued amount, In which case the reversal is treated as a revaiuation increase.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets And Capitat Commitments

Contingent Liabitities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non=occurrence of one or more ungertain future events beyond the control of the Company or 2 present cbligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation. A contingent fiability also
arises in extremaly rare cases where there is a fiability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existeace in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only only disclosed
when it is preable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company's has a present obligation {fegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation, When the Company's exgects some or alf of a provision to be reimbursed, for examgple, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense refating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a cusrent pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
racognised as a finance cost.

Retirement and ether Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans.

All amployee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are dassified as short-term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and foss in the period in which the emplayee
renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution pavable to the provident fund.

The Company reéognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
sarvice. I the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liabifity after deducting the contrlbution already paid, if the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due forsservices received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will tead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the aext 12 months, is weated as short—ierm employes benefit. The
company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. .

The company treats accumiilated ieave expected to be carried forward beyond tweive months, as long—term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long—term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuariat valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year—end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately tzken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an uncenditional
right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right
1o defer the settiemant for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as aon-—current liability.

Defined benefit plans
Gratluity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation
under projected unit credit (PUC) method.

The company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the company has a present obligation as a result of
past event, it is probable that an outfiow . of resources embodying economic benefits witl be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to
market " yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.
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Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined kenefit liabitity and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the
period in which they oceur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate ta the net defined benefit liability or asset,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiabitity or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets

initial recognition and measurgment

Al financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financia! assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subseguent measurement .

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are only classified as Debt instruments at amortised cost

Delt instruments at amortised cost

A "debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if hoth the following conditions are met:

a} The asset is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold assets for coliecting contractual cash flows,

and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integrat part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or lass. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or foss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,

Derecognition

A tinancial asset {or, where appiicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a‘Company's of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet} when: :

» The rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired, or

» The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation te pay the recetved cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b} the company has neither transferred ner retained substantially alf the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows frem an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evatuates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantiaily alt of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing involvement, [n that case, the company alse recognises an associated
lrability, The transferred asset and the associated liabitity are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obiigations that the
company has retained.

Continuing invoivement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
in accoerdance with Ind AS 1089, the company applies expected credit loss (ECLY mode! for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure;

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance
b ¥inancial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL
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The company follows ‘simpiified approach’ for recognition of impairment lpss allowance on Tragde receivabies that do not comain a
significant financing componant.

Thé application of simpiified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss aflowance based on {ifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to

' provide for impairment foss. However, 1f credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. ¥, in a subsequent period, credit

guality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from ail possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date, '

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accardance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive {i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash fiows, an
entity is required to consider: : '

» Al contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of
the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then
the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

P Cash flows from the sale of coliateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the cortractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the pericd is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit
and doss (P&L). This amount is reflacted under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured-as at amortised cost: £CL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial racognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through orofit or loss, lvans and borrowings,
payables, as appropriate.

All financial fiabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and horrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc,

Subseguent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-hearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method,
Gains and losses are recogaised in profit or Joss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits recieved.

Derecognition

A financial iiabitity is derecogaised when the cbligation under the Liability is discharged or cancelied or expires. When an existing
financtal Bability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecogeition of the original liakility and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in band and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.

Earning per share

Basic Earnings Per Share .is caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable {0 equity shareholders hy the
weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period. '

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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Amount in INR Lakhs

As At As At
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
5. Cash and Cash equivalents
{i} Balances with banks
~ In Current Account : 604.45 670.67
- in Fixed Deposit Account {due within 3 months) ’ 703.49 574.81
(i) Cash on hand 214.68 161.08
1,522.62 1,406.56
6. Loans {Unsecured, Considered Good}-Current
Loan to employees : 0.68 4.03
0.68 4.03
7. Other Financial Assets
{i} Non Current o
Security Deposit to related parties 9.75 9.75
Security Deposit to others 65.20 63.68
74.95 73.43
{ii) Current
Interest accryed on fixed deposit . 1.99 0.87
Receivabie Other than trade - considered good . 1,357.16 2,014.17
Security Deposit to related parties - 149.84 247.80
Security Deposit to others 3.3% 3.39
1,512.37 2,266.23
8. Other Current Assets
" {i} Other Non Current Assets {Considered Good)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 13.69 15.71
13.69 15.71
{ii) Other Current Assets {Considered Good)
Advances recoverabie in cash or kind : 200.92 243.97
Mobilisation Advance - 234.57 10.34
Prepaid Expenses : 53.97 54.2%
Balances with statutory / government authorities 109.62 22.92
599,08 331,52
9. Inventories
Stores & Spares (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) 150.26 56.89
150,26 56.89
10. Current Tax Assets
Advance income tax {net of provision) - 20.3% 4.37

20.39 4.97
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11, Share capital Amount in INR Lakhs
As Ab As it
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Authorlsed
i) 50,00.000 equity shares of $NR 10 each . 500.00 500.00

{March 31, 2028; 50,00,00C equity shares of INR 10 each}
{ii) 2,98,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 100 each 29,300.00 79.800.00

(March 31, 2018: 2,98,00,000 preference shares of {NR 100 eath} )

30,300,00_ 30,300.00

i)

{lil)

0]

=

tvil

lssued, Subscribed & Paid-Up

50,00,000 equity shares of INR 16 each " L0000 500.00
{March 31, 2018: 50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)
500.00 500,00

NOTES ¢

Tetms o Equity Shares

The Company has only one ciass of aquity shares having a par value of iNR 10 per share, Each holder of aquity is entitled to one yote per share, The Company deciares and
pay dividend in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of director is subject ta the approval of the sharetiolder in ensulng Annual General meeting.

In event of lguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be antitled 1o receive remalning assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amaunts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Tarms ta Preference Shares

5% Non-Cumudative, Campulsory Convertible Preference Shares of INR 100 each fully paid up

The non cumulative, Compulsory Convertible Prefereace Shares of INR 100 each will be converted inte Equity Shares of INR 10 each at the eption of the
[ fPreferen . al any time on or before Getober 01, 2024, at Par Value of at such price as may be motually agreed between the company & the
Freference Shareholders at the time of converston. Refer note 12 and 13 for equily and liatllities portion of Preference Shares,

Reconciiiation of the Equity shares outstanding at heginning and at end of the year

As At As AL
March 3], 2019 March 34, 2018
Mo of Shares {n jakhs . Amountén INR Lakhs Mo of Shares jn lakhs... Amouns In kR Lekbs
Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year . 50.0¢ 500.60 50.00 500.00
Shares Issued during the year - - - .
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 50.00 500.00 50.00 500,00
&ecanciliation of the Preference shares outstanding at beginaing and at end of the year
As At As At
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Preference Sharos Ho of Shares jn Lakhs __ Amount in INR iskhs No of Shares in Lekhs _ Amount in 1R Lakhs
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 297.53 29,752.74 292.53 25,752,714
Shares Issued during the year - - - :
Shares cutstanding al the end of the year 297.51 28,752.14 297,53 29,152.74
Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Compaay
As As At
. Mareh 31, 2019 harch 33, 2018
Equity No of Shares In Lakhs L% No of Shayes in Lakhs *® .
GMA Highways Limiled .50 49.00% 24.50 45.00%
GMR Infrastructure Limited, the Parent company 2050 41.00% 20.50 41.00%
Punj Uavd Limited X . 500 10.00% 5.00 10.00%
As At s At
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Prefercnce Share No of Shares {n takhs % No of Shares in Lakhs %
GMR Highways Limited 716.00 72.60% 216.00 TLE0%
GMA infrastructure Umlted, the Pareat company 8153 2740 6133 27.40%
Shares heid by helding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
As At As At
March 33, 2009 March 31, 2018
No of Shares InLakhs _ Amaunt I INR Lskhs ~ No of Shares in Lakhs _ Amount In INR Lakhs
Equity
GMR Highways Limited 24.50 245,00 24.50 245.00
BMR Infrastructuce Limited, the Parent company 20.50 205.0¢ 20.50 205.00
hs At As At
March 31, 201% March 31, 2018

No of Shares In Lakhs ___Amount in {NRiakhks No of Shares in Lakhs___Amount in INR Lekhs

Prefarance Share
GMR Highways Limited 216.00 21,600.00 216,00 21,600.00

GMR Infrastructure Limited, the Parent company 8L53 B152.74 B1.53 2,152.74

(vif) No Shares have been issued by the Company for considaration other than eash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

S 1

i)

QOther Equity Amoini in INR Lakhs
As AY : At
March 31, 2013 Miarch 35, 2018

Equity companent of Preference shares

Qpening Balance 23,052.27 22,052.27

Add : Adjustment for the yeasr 2205227 22,852.7
{ii} Equity camponant of {eans from Related Party

Opening Balance 25,255.43 26,104.37

Add : Agjustment for the year - 29,255.49 3,151.13 29,255.49
fiily Surplus [ (Deficit) In the statement of Profit & Lass

Dpening Balance (85,765.69) {66.,263.25)

Add : Profitf (Loss] for the year (11,281.28] {97,050.97) 19,506.45) (25,769.6%)
{iv} Other Comgtehensive Income

Opening Balance 9.09 1.2%

Add : Addition during the year 115 1024 39 9.0%

{45,792.58) - 13¢452.85)




GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Eimited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the as at March 31, 2019

U45201KA2009PTLO50109
........ . '
Amaount in INR Lakhs
As At As At
. March3t, 2019 e Mprch 31,2008
13. Burrowings
Secured E
Loan from Banks including Working Capital Loan 126,010.90 138,315.451
Loan {rom Financlal Institution 12,294 86 13,4493.40
Liability companent of compaunad financial Instrumant
Loans from grotip company {{insecured) 23,478.45 23,213.22
Canvartible Preference Shares {Unsecured) 17,008 65 15,367.06
178,793.85

The ioa is repayable-n 46 unequal quarterly instalments. Secured by ways of pari passu first charge over company's movable properties, both present and future, cluding plant and
machinery. Further secured by the rights, title, interest, benefit, claims, of the company In respect of the project agreements executed / 1o be executed, insurance policies balh present
and future, and ail rights, tite, Interest, benefi, claims, demands of the company in respect of monies lying to the credit of trust and retention account and other accounts and
substitution agreemen(§ and Collection of tolls unless restricted by NHAI under the Cancessien Agreement, and by way of pledge of 13,00,000 equity shares of face value INR {0/ cach
{ulty paid up, and 77,33,000 preference shares of INR 100/ each fully pafd up, held by GMR Highways Limited.

{

&

(1)} Working Capital term laan was from Bank of Baroda was repayable In 36 manthiy instalments starting after 24 months from the dste of first disbursement. The first date of disbursement
is 22nd March, 2014. The loan has been fully repadd during the cusrent year. The loan carried an Interest rate of 275 per cent over Banks's base rate and secured by way of first pasi passu
citarge on the same securities offered as security for the Project Loan under point no. {a Jabove.

{¢] Loons fromn group Company (unsecured} includes : .
i. an Interest free unsecured term loan of INR 201.60 creres from GMR Highways Limited and shall be repayable after final settlement date of Rupee Term Laans as per Lhe financlal
agreements entered inte with Lenders as per point No. 'a’ above,
ii. an Interest free unsecured term loan of INRINR 13.79 Crores from GMR Highways Limited to meet the Cost over run of the Project Construction and shall be pepayable sfter fingl
settlement date of Rupee Term Loans as per the financial agreements entered into with Lenders ¢ pet Paint No. 'a’ abovas, N
Jii. an interest free unsecured term lozn of INR INR 177.5 Crores from GMR Highways Limited and shall be repayable by March 31, 2025.
Interest free Ioans from Group companies are separated inte liabllity and equity components based on the terms of the contracl. On receipt of the loan, the fair value of the liahility
<ampenent is determined using a market rate for an equivalent instrument. This amount is classified as a financlal llabllity reasured at amortised cost {net of transaction costsy untd it is
extinguished. The remalnder of the pr ds is gnised and included in equity [Refer note 12}
{d) The Company had issued 2,87,52,740 6% Non-Cumulative, Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of INR 100 cach fully paid up. The non cumulalive, Compuisory Convertible

#reference Shares will be converted into Equity Shares of #NR 10 cach at the option of the Company/Prelerence Shareholders, at any time on or before Cctober D1, 2024, at Par Value on at
such price as may be mutualy agreed hetween the company B the Preference Shareholders at the time of convarsion.

As these Preference share are non cumulative and the Company is not under obligation to pay dividend, only fair value of redemption value has been considered as financial liability using

a market rate for an equivalent fnstrument. This amount is classified as a financial lizbility measured al amertlised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on redemption. The
remakndear of the proceeds Is recognised and included in £quity {Refer Note 12}

{e} Interest on secured loan amounting to INR 12,85 Cr. (March 31, 2018 INR 45.35 Cr.} far a period of one months (aprox.} is overdue for payments,

14. Trade Payables
Payalies 1o NHAI 45,124.84 36,343 41 H
Payables to Related parties 1,813.73 1,365.94 3
Payables ta MSME . 14,15 . -
Payables 1o Others than MSME 150.10 913.55

Retention Money

- -Payabie to Related Parties . - 35.32
-Payable to MSME . 5.46 -
~Payable ta Other than MSME 7145 4 69

Terms and conditions of the abave finaacinl Habilities:
1} Trade payables are nan-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 days terms.
2} Disclosure relating to Micro, Small & Medium £nierprises {as per the informatian avaitable with the Company).
Mar 31, 2019 o War31, 2018
Principal amount due outstanding at the end of the year 19.62
Interest dug on above and remained unpaid as at year end -
Interest paid to supplier ’ -
Payment made to supplier beyond the appeinted day during the year -
tnterest due and payabfe for the period of defay -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at the year end
Amount of furthar Interest remaining due and payable In succeeding year . . B

3

Retention money has been dlassified as trade payable {which was earlier classified as other financial liabifitics) as per group pelicy. Accordingly comparative figuce for last year ie. INR |
132.01 {acs has been reclassified to trade payable. s

15. Other Fingncial Ltability |
Current maturities of long term secured debt from bank including Working capita! lean 12,305%.02 442349
Current maturities of long term secured debt from Financial Institution ) 1,198.53 20850
{riterest due but not paid on borrowings 1,286.23 4,535 78
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Amount in iNR Lakhs

16. Provisiens
(i} Non Current
(&} Provision for Employee Benefits
(b) Fraviston for Major Maintenance

2%.35
5,236.50

{ii} Current
(3} Provision for Employee Benefits 28.76 34,08
{b) Provision for Other Employee Benefit - .
{b)Provision for Oparaticn and Maintenance 45.35 4162
2,800.00 16,312.43

{c} Provisian for Major Maintenance

Pravision for Major Maintenance .
- The Company has a contractual ablgation to maintaln, reptace or restore infrastructure, except for any enhancement element. Cost of such abligation is measuced at the best estimate of the

expenditure required to settie the obligation at the bafance sheet date and recognised aver the périod at the end of which the overlay is estimated ta be carried out. Major Overlay activities
was expected to be carried out in FY 2018-2% and FY 2019-20. During the current year, an independent agency has carrizd out roughness test an the project site. Lased an repart by
independent agency, the management has revised its assumption about the timing ané quantum of the estimated overlay expenditure and expect 1o carry cut-major maintenance over soxt 5

years.
As At As AL
March 31, 201% Masch 21, 2018
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Opening Salance - 16,312.43 12,1389 .
Accrelion/{Reversail) during the year - {4,200.81) 4,173.52
Utilised curing the year - {74.62) - -
Transfer from Long term te Short Term 9,235.90 19,236.50) {16,312.42) 16,317.4%
Ciosing Balance 9,236.90 - 2,800.00 . 16,312.43
As At As At
17. Other current liabillties ___March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advances from customers & others 001 .87
Statutory dues 15.21 6]
71281 a3

Advance received from NHAI towsrds COS Work
m"“__—ﬁs_}m.i— ¥ T
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18. Revenue from operations

Toll Revenue

Construction Revenue

19. Other income

Interest Income on Bank Deposit

Interest income on Others

Excess provision written back {Refer Note 29 ¢)
Other non-operating income

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Amount in INR Lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2018

29,281.87 26,052.52
371.11 . 186.37
29,652.98 2623889
55.32 30.53
5.41 5.50
5,383.92 1.58
27.31 9.10
5,471.97 46.70




GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019
UA45201KA2009PTCO50109

Amount in INR Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

20, Operating expenses

Revenue Share to NHAI - ' 11,196.00 9,707.84
Construction Expense 337.37 169.43
Regular Maintenance 867.05 560.96
Toll/Highway Management Services 746.63 749.94
Major Maintenance Expenses - 2,876.78

13,147.05 14,064.96

21, Employee benefit expense

Salaries, Perquisites & Allowance 262.15 262.47
Contribution to provident and other funds 18.27 21.87
Gratuity expense 2.32 6.15
Staff welfare expenses : ' 12.48 20.73

286.23 | 311.22

22, Finance costs

Interest on Term Loan ‘ 17,529.60 i8,033.20
Interest on financial Liabilities 5.076.40 4,823.88
interest on Revenue Share to NHAI 3,585.43 2,335.30
Dther Finance Charges : 288.24 257.75

26,479.68 25,450.14

Total interest expense (calculated using the effective interest method) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profil or loss

Details of Finance costs

(2) Interest on Term Loan 17,529.60 18,033.20
{b) Interest on Loan from Related parties 2,266.12 2,043.99
{clinterest on Loan part of Preference Shares 1,641.59 1,483.15
(d) interest to Revenue Share to NHAI 3,585.43 2,335.30
(e} Interest on Qverlay Provision 1,168,658 1,296.74
{f] Other Finance Charges 288.24 257.75

26,479.68 25,450.14

23. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment (note 3) 38.08 31.40
Amortization of intangible assets {note 4) ' 5,012.96 4,486.02

5,051.04 4,517.42
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24, Other expenses

Amount in INR Lakhs

Stores & Consumables 143.43 83.51
Power Charges & Water charges 411.83 389.96
Repairs & Maintenance 174.96 158.67
D&M Vehicle Costs 71.37 6291
Rent 14.45 14.45
Rates and taxes 2.29 3.33
Insurance 92.59 96.43
Office maintenance 1.3% 1.80
Advertising & Sponsorships 9.05 3.92
Travelling and conveyance 16.29 9.48
Communication costs 11.00 14.97
Printing and stationery 3.31 2.13
Consultancy and professional fees 459.96 432,73
Loss on Write-off Assets - 139.54
Safety ftems 6.26 9.88
Directors’ sitting fees 2.54 3.05
Fayments to auditors 6.56 7.95
Business Promotion Exp 4.09 10.02
Miscellaneous expenses 1.92 3.47
1,433.22 1,448.30
Payment to auditor
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
inRs, in Rs.
As auditor:
Audit fee 3.50 3.50
Tax audit fee 0.75 0.75
Other services (certification fees) 1.00 2.27
Reimbursement of expenses 0.37 0.22
Service Tax/GST on Above 0.95 1.21
Total 6.56 7.95
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25. Income Tax

The Company, being Infrastructure Company, enjoys the benefit of tax holiday period for 10 years out of first 25 years of operations.
In initial years of dperations, the Company has incurred losses and hence not claimed benefit of tax holiday peried. The Management
expects that all temporary differences as well as unused tax losses will reverse in tax holiday period and accodignly has not recognised
resulting deferred tax. Summary of temporary differences & unused tax losses for which deferred tax assets/liablity has not been

recognized is as under:
Amount in INR Lakhs

Particulars Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
Unused Tax losses 55,905.21 31,386.04
Unabrobed Depreciation : _ 85,333.11 85,222.32
Leave Encashment 32.27 30.61

The Company offsets tax assets and Habilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are:

As at ' As at

. . Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018

Accounting profit ' {11,280) (19,499}
Tax at the applicable tax rate ’ (3,486) (6,025)

Deferred tax asset not recognised : 3,486 6,025

Tax expense -
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Earning/ {Loss) Per Share

Ea.sic EP5 amounts a7e calculated by dividing the profit/ loss for the year attributable to equity sharehelders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted £PS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders {after adjusting for Interest on tha convertibin securities) by the weighted average aumber of equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of equity sha{es that would be Issued un convatsion of ail the dilitive potential equily shares inte equily shares.

The {ollowing reflects the income and share data used In the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Papticufars Mas 31, 2015 Mar 23, 2018
Face value of 2quity shares (Re. per share} ' 10 ) 10
Profilf (loss] atlributable to equily shareholders (Rs in INR Lakhs} {11,283.28) £19,506.45)
Weiphted average number of equlty shares used for computing earning per share {basic and diluted) 50 50
EPs- hasic and dituted ('} . . (225.63) {390.13)
‘The Company has incuried a net toss of INR 11261 lecs during the year and total liabilities of the Company exceed its Lotal assels by INR 45,233 Lacs a5 on March 31, 2019,

Further considering the liquidity stress, the Company has app an ind dent pr ional to prepara a resolution plan in terms of RBI Guigdelines on “Framework on Resolution of Stressed Assots” and informed
thi same to jenders. Resolution plan is stilt under preparation: The Management is hopeful that appropriate resolution plan would be approved by the lenders and would resolve the expected cash flow issues arising due
10 loan fepayment schedule {which is geing to be acceterated fram Aprit 01, 2019),

The promoters of the Company have assured to provide necessary financlel and other assistance to help running its operations smoothly in the ensuing years. Therefore the account of the Company has been propared
under going concern assumption,

Impairment of assets

The Company has been incurring fosses since the of sinte FY¥ 2053, These losses are primarily due 10 Ings of revenue arising as a result of drop in commercial raffic dus to
bifurcalion of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban en sand mining in the region. These events corstitutes a Change in Law as per the Concession Agreement and Company has filed a claim of INR 462.48 Crare for §Y 7012-12
to FY 2016-17 on NHAL The management has also obtained a legal apinion which confirms that these events are Change In tew and Company is entitled to the claim far Iosses suffered on this accounl. NHAI has agreed
that these events are falling under change in law and agreed te pay claim for foss, however not agreed on guantification methodalogy to determine claim arount. To feach amicable settlements, the management was
filling and agrening to accept clalm fower than its entitlemest (as per clause 41.2 of the concession agreement}, however NHAf had not accepted those claims as well. On rejection by NHAIL the Company has invaked
dispute resolution process a3 per the provisions of the Concession Agreement, which also failed. The Company has nitiated arbltration proceeding and Asbitration Tribunal was constituted in July 2017, Based on the
directions of the Tribunal, Company has filed its Statement of Ciaim for an amount of Rs. 752.32 Crore caleulated up to March 2017 {based on protection of NPV as specilied under clause 41.3 of the concession
agrecinent) befare Arbitral Tribunal in September 2017, which Is significantly higher than claim lodged earlier, Gased on the legat opinion, the managemenl Is confident to cover the claim under aforesaid clause of the
contession agreement. The Compary got valuation study of Intangibie Asset for testing impalrment from lndependenr reputed firm of finznciaf professionaly thal have conlirmad that recoverable value of the Intangible
Assel is significantly higher than its carrying valua, N

In the Interest of the stakeholders, the Company has alse fssued notice of force majeure (Political Event) as per article 34 of the concession agreement vide its letter dated June 13, 2016. Since, the malter is cursently
under Arbitration, accordingly force majeure notice has not been considered for preparation of accounts.

in accordance with the € fon Agreement, ion paried for project is 25 years from the appointed date, The project was initially developed fram existing 2 lanes to 4 lane ang be further devefoped to 6 faning
subsequently {belore 14th anniversary of the appointed date}. If six laning is not carsled out [if so rexuired by NrAl/desired by the Company), concession period will be restricted ta 15 years.

af ible Assets from independent consultant, the management is confidant about recovery of claim, G laning of the project and recoverabic

Based on legial opinion, expected traffic flow and Ind d I
value of gible Assel. dingly impai on the Carri does not atise.
f accounting jud, i and assumptions.
The preparativn of the company’s financial st requires to make ji estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounls of revences, _expenses, assets, Kabllitics, the

accompanying disclasures and the disclosure of contingent llabIFties. Actuat results could differ from those estimates, £simates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Unnelldlnlv about these
sssumptions and cstsmaus colld zesultin outcomes that require a materlal adjustment o the carrying amount of assets of hiakbilities affected in fviure periods.

The estimate and the undedying ptions are revi d on an ongeing hasls. Revistons to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which are odimate is revised and future periods affected.
Significant judgeanents and the estimates }elaling 1o the carrying values of assets and dishilities includes impal of I ible Assets, ination of uselu! fife, provision for overlay expanses, recoverability of
deferied lax assets, provision for employee benefits and others provisions, i and i ies and fair valus measuraments of investments,

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of astimation uncertainty at the fepomng gate, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment lo the carrying amounts of assers and
tinkilities within the next flinancial year, are duscribed below. The Company based s ions and on ilable when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumplions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are bryond the conteol of the Company. Such changas are reflected in the assumplions when lhey

aceur.

a) Impairmant of intangible Assets:

The Coinpany lins Hed a clzim due to loss of revenve arising as a zesult of drep In commarcial traffic due to bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban on sand mining in the region. These evenls Constiutes a
Change in Law as per the C i The is confident that the company will be able to recelve damapos/ ion from relevant ities for the loss the Company has suffered/ swlfering
du to such change in law and considered the expacted cash inflow from clalm for testing impairment loss on Carriageways. For further details, Refer Note 28.

b} Amortisation

intangible Asset arising on service concession arrangement is baing amortised over concession period on propartionate revenus melhod. In sccordance with the concassion agreement, concession period for projectis 25
years {eom the appoinied date. The preject was initially developed from existing 2 fanes to 4 lzne and be further develop ed 106 laning subseq ly (before t4th anniversary of the appointed dale i.c. April 2024} I six
lzning is not carried out (it so required by NHAY/deslred by the Cempany {option te be availbed by 11th annlvery of the appointed date i.e. April 2021}, concession period wilk be restricted 10 15 years, Based on current
traffic flow, the management estimates that & faning will be required, hence concession period has been considered as 25 years for smortisation of Intangible Assels. Restriction of the concession petiod Lo 1% years
weuld have significant impact on the carying value of Intangible Asset and carrying value of intangible Assets would have been lower by INR 65975 takhs if wsolul life is considered as 15 years with cortespanding
increase in the accunulated losses.

Further 1o apply the szld proportionate revenue method of amoriisation, future revenue has heen estimated by the Management based on technicat study by Independent Consultant,

) Provision for overlay:

An per the terms of concession agreement, the Company is required to carry out overlay aclivitios il roughness value exceeds defined parameters, The Management estimates the timing and amount 1o be incurred on
suzi\ overluy activities to recognise the provision for averlay as per tha requirements of IND AS 37. During the current year, an Independent agency hes carried out roughness tost on the project site. Based on report by
{ apoency, the has revised its assumption abeut the timing and tum of the esti d averlay di and taversed excoss provision of INR 53.25 crores. Further dutails are given 1n note

16,

o) Taxes
Deferred 1ax assets are recepnised for Mat Credit Entitlernent to the eatent that it Is proiable that taxable profit whl be available against which the same can be utiksed. is required Lo
determine the smount of deferred tax assets that can be recopnised, based vpen the likely iming and the leval of future taxable profits together with future tax slanning strategies. Refer note 25 [cr further disclosures

e) I'alr value measurement of financial instruments

Whon the fair values of financis! assets and financial liabilitivs recorded n the balance sheat cannot ba measured based on quoted prices in actlve markels, thei fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including thi DCF made]. The inpuls to these medels are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in est ing fair values. Jud s include
y risk, credit zisk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instrements. fefer aote 41 o further disclasures.

considerations ol inputs such as lig

o} Contingencins

Contingeal liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in refation o claims against the Company, including legal and contractual claims. By their nalure, cantingencles will be resolved enly when one or
more uncerlain future events ooew or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and ial of conlii ies inherently invalves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding
the outcome of luture events.

|
i
i
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1} Defined bunafit plans {gratulty benafits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined wsing actuarfal valuations. An actuerial valuation invalves making varjous assumptions that may differ Irom
actual develupments in the future, These include the getermination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the comptexilies involved in he valuation and its jong-term nature, a defined
benefit olligation is highly sensitive 1o changes In these All are revl d at each reporting date,

Fhe parameter most subject to change Is the discount rale. In determining the apprapriate discount rate for pans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds,

The morlafily rate is based on publicly avsilable mortality tables for Ingia. Those mortality tables tend to change only at Intervat in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and graluity inceeases are
based an expacted future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note . .

Matters pending with NEAL

The Comgany has been Incurring losses since the of commerciat ians which are primarily due to loss of revenue arising as 2 result of drog in commerclal traffic due te bifurcation of ttale of Andhra
Fiadesh and ban on sand mining in the region. These events constitutes 3 Change in Law as per the Concession Agreement and legal opinion cbtained by the management alss confirms that these events are Change in
iaw and Company is entitled to the claim for losses suffered on this account. NHAL has agreed that these events are falling under change In law and agreed to pay claim for loss, however not agreed on quantification
methodology o determine clalm amount. The Company has initiated arbi ding ang A fen Tribuna) was constituted in fuly 2017, Bascd on 1he directions ol the Tribunal, Company has fifed ils $talement
of Claim for an amount of Rs. 75232 Crore calculated up to March 2017 [based on protection of NPV as specified under clause 41.3 of the concession agreement} before Arbitrat Tribunal. Malter is pending with
Arbitration Tribunal

Revenue share payable to KHAI for the period from April 1, 2015 to March 33, 2019 amuun!ir;g to INR 451,25 Crores is outstanding as on the date of financhal stalement. Sanction letter for Deferment of revenue share
paymeant has been withdrawn by the NHAI vide its lester dated June 08, 2016. NHAI has ditected the Company to pay outstanding additional concession fees inclusive of interest in the form of addilional Concession for,
failure to which, it will iniliate action in terms of Artlcles 35/36/37,1.1 (] of the Cancession Agreement (which includes termination of the concession agreement).

The Company approached the Tribunal by filing an Affidavil for passing an order, restraining NHAI from seeking any such recovery/demand/claim and/for taking any coercive action including ter
completion of the present atbitration proceedings. fn the Hearing held on 30.10.2018, the Tribunal heard Both the parties and kept the order reserved. The Tribunal is yet to pronounce the order.

ination of CA, till the

As per the concission agreement, the appointed date shall be the date of financial closure or an earlier date agreed by tho Concesslonalre & NHAI and the Company is required to achieve financial closure within 180
days Irom date of ¢ lony arr The fi ing documeants with the project lendors were executed on Agril 5, 2010 and the concessionatre cisimed achicvament of financial closute 6n April 7, 2010, Theteafier,
pursuant to madilication suggested by NHAI ta the fi Ing d were carried out to the financing documents on August 5, 2010. None of the comments by NHAI were ailering the commarcial
understanding reflected in the financing dacuements nor did they increase or decrease the liability of NHAL

However, NHAl has maintalned date of financial closure a5 August 5, 2030 and demanded a penalty for delay in achieving financial closure. The Company has pald a penalty of Rs. 913.50 Lacs ‘under protest’ and claims
that by payment of such penalty it would autematically became entitled {o 3 further period of 120 days for financial closure, and appointed date follows immediately therealter. NHA| has nol agreed for the coniention of
the Company and cunsidered appointed date as April 6, 2010, During the currerit year, the Campany has initiated en arbilvation process to resalve the disputa though Arbitration panel is yel ta be constituled.

As per Cancession Agreement, the Company is requirad to pay premivm in form of an additional Concesslon Fee 1o NHAI equal to 32.6% of the total fealitable Fee during 3rd yesr of concessian period [e fram
Appeinted Date), Lo be increased by 1% for every subsequent year, Due to dispute on appoltted date between the Company and NHAL NHAS hat demanded additienat concession foes of INR 150,85 Iacs nertaiming 1o the
period April 2013 to August 2013 and April 2014 to August 2034, whick has bean paid by the Company under protest, During the current year, the Company has initisted arbitration proceadings though Arbitration panet
is yet tu be constituted, The Company i confident te get it resolved in ils favour and according pending settlemens of dispute with NHAL such payment has been shown under currant assets,

The company had fiied claim of INR 13.16 Crore for non collection of toll from Sth Nov 2016 onwards i the migaight of 2nd Dec 2016 in accordence with the guidelines issued by NHAL The Company is following up with

NHAL 1o retease the cfaim amount. In view of certalnty of recovery, such claim {belng in nature of | of axp } has heen ised as current assets.
Litigation
The Cumpany I= o cu-respondent to a few Etigations filed by certain parties against NHAI and State seeking compansation for land acquisition etc, However, the Company is not having any financat

shiigation in such cases, similarly the Company filed 3 case before High Courl seeking police protection In respect of a Toll Plaza, In all these litigations the Company does ol have financial obligations which would
impact its financiad position as at March 31, 2019,

Capital Commitments

Lstimated amount of Contracts romaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as on March 31, 2019 INR 256,09 Lakhs (As on 315t March 2018 is INR 593.46 Lakhs),

Contingent Labiliies: NIL

Leass .
The Company has enlered into certain canceliable operating lease agreements for accommodation. Lease rental of INR 14.45 takhs (March 2018 : INR 14.45 Lakhs-] paid during the yvear ended March 33, 201% under such
agreermenis.

Gratuity and other post-employment benedit plans:

{a) Befined Contribution Plans

Canitibutions paid f payable to defined plans « ising of p
during the peried when the contributions 1o the respective funds are due.
Asun of INR 18,27 Lakhs {March 31, 2018 INR 21.86 Lakhs) has been charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in this respect

o i

fund, penslon fund, superannuation fund etc., In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations are recognised as exponses

(b} Defined Benefit Plans
The Cainpany Las defined benefit plan, namely gratuity,

Cerlain catities in the Group are covered by a funded defined benefit gratuity plan. As per the scheme, an employee who has completed five years ot more of service gets gratuily equivalent to 15 days salary {last drawn
salary} lor vach completed year of service.

The ing table 1s¢3 1he s of net expensa recognised in the incoma siatement and amounts recognised in the balance sheat for graluity.

Net Benefit Expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2039 March 31, 2018
Compenents of defined bunefit costs recognised in profit or loss INR Lakhs INR Lakhs
Lurreat service cost . 3.58 3.85
fnter osl cust on benefit obfigation {1.26) (0.98)
Expected return un plan assets - 31.0R
Totul 2.37 5,95

Components of defined benelit costs gnised in other h income
Actuariat {gains}/ loss dun to DBO expertence . (0.46) (5.881
Acluatial {gains) £ loss due to DBO assumptlon changes - {1.14]
Return on Flan assels {greater}fless than discount rate 0.35 3 {0.76)
Total [0.41) (2.79)
As at Asat
A3555 43180

Bennefit Assotf (Liabitity}

Defined benvlit olligation 128,75 25.57)
Fair value of plan assots . 42,44 41,28

Asset/ (Hability} 33.69 1571
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Changes in tha present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Qpening defined henefit sbligation 25.57 75.06
Interest cost 1.82 174
Cupront service cost 3.58 3.85
Henelits Paid (3.24) 3.08
Actuarial {pain}/loss - elpenence 0.48) {5.88)
Act 1) e - -
Actuatial {gain}floss - financlal assumptions - (1.14)
Acquisilion adjustmunt 148 {1.22)
Closing defined benelit obligation 1B.75 25.57
Changes o the fair value of plan zssats:

Qpening lair value of plan assets 41.28 38.7¢
Netinterest un net defined benefit lability/ {asset) 1.08 202
Acquisition adjustment 1.48 -
Aeturn on plan assels greaterfilesser) thap discount rate {0.35} .76
Contributions by employer 213 n.22
Benelits paid 3,24} {1.32)
Closing fair value of plan assets a2.44 41.28

The major categorles of plan assets as a porcentage of toted
Other {including assets under Schemes of lnsurance)

Asat

As ot
IV

ar 31, 2018

_ Meratoone  MaraL s

100%

106%

The principal assumptions used in determining pension 2nd post-employ benefit obligatlons for the Campany’s plans are shown below:

Disceunt rate 7.60% 7.60%
Future salary increascs 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of interest 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality Lable used tndian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Mortality (2006-08) {2006-08) Ult.
Gt

The pslimales of fulure salary increases considered In the actuarial valuation take Into account inflatien, senlority, promotion and other relevant faclors such as supply and demand in the employment market

Contribulivns expecled to he made by the Company during the next year Is INR 0.19 Lakhs [previous year IR 0.22 Lakhs)

Risk Fuced by Company:

The Gratity schoine is a finaf salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of tetiremant, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis
af finat salacy and the period of service and paid as Jumg sum at exit, The Plan design means the 7Isks cormmoniy affecting the fiabilitios and the financial results ste expecied to be:

Intorest rale sisk : The dofined benefit obligation caltulated uses & discount rate based on governmant bonds. If bond ylolds fall, the defined benulit obligation will 1end 1o increase.

Safary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

Demogruphic risk is is 1he risk of variability of results due ta hature of d that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirerment. The effect of these decrements on the gefined benehit
cbligation i not slraight forward and depends upon the combinatior of salary Increase, siscount rate and vesting <Htetia. It is Important aot to overstate withdrowals because i the financiat analysix the relirement
Benetit of 2 short caveer employee Lypically costs lass per yoar as compared to a tong service employee.

Sipmilicant achuariafb for the deter of the defined obligatior are discount rate, expocted salary increase and marality, The sensitivity annlyses below have been determined based on reasorably
possilie changes of the respactive assnmpllnns occurring at the end of the reporting petlod, while helding all other assumgtions constant.

Snensitivity Analysis
' Mer 31, 2019
Fulure safary increases
1% ~i%
Amount in INR
2.44

Withdrawai Rate
+1% 1%

Discount rate
1% 1%

Irnpiset an detined benefitl obligation {2.61) 3.04 12.1%} 0.51 (0.58)

My 31, 2018 e

Withdraws! Rate
1% 1%

Discount rate
+1% A%

Future salary increases
¥1% 3%
Amount {n INE
217

Sensivivity Luvel

tapitct on dulined beaefit obligation {2.34) 73 {1.94) 043

G500

taturity Plan of defined benefit obligation: Amount fit INR Lakhs
Within 1 year 1.86
-2 year 215
2-3year 2.37
3-4 yoar 2.72
-5 yeat 3.09
510 19.16

Ust of Refated parties and Tr
o) Namie of Refate
fnterprises that control the Company / exerciie s:gmﬁcanl GMR Enterprises Private Limited [ GEPL}
GMR Infrastructure Limited {GIL}

GMR Highways Limited {GHWL)

/0 fire $5al,

influence

Fellow Sobsidianies GMR Energy Ltd {GEL)

GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways ijmlled (GTAEL}

GMR Tembaram Tindivenam Expressways Limpted {GTYEL)
GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL}

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited [GHIAL)
GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited {GCAPL)

GMR Pachanpafll Expressways Limited {GPEL)

GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limlted {GCORR) -
GMR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited (GBPPL}
_1GMR Airports Limited (GAL)

GVIR Airpert Developers timited [GADL)
GMR Kish h Udaipur Ahmedabad Expressways Ltd (GKUAEL)
GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Pelvate timited [GSPHPL)

Kakinada SEZ {mited {KSL}

Raxa SecunySemce; Limited {RSSL}

GMR Varatakshmi {Gvr)
GMR Family Fund Trusl (GFFT)

Sharehaldors of the g company

Influnnce

Kéy Manapgement Personnel Mr. O Bangaru Raju, Director

Mr. Arun Kursar Sharma, Director (w.e.f. Seplember 01, 2016)

Ms. Vinta Tarachanganl, Independent Director (w.e.f. September 01, 2016}
Mr. B. L. Gupta, independent Director {w.e.f. September 01, 2016)

Mr.Chandrashekar 8 Maraper
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b} Summary of transaetions with above related partias are as follows:

Amount in IN& Lakhs

Name of Entity X Particulars Fot the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31, 2019 Harch 31, 2018
Transaction with Enterpyises that control the Company / exerclse significant influence
GlL Project Management fees £9.16 125.72
Interest on compound finandal instrument {Preference Shares) 449.82 406.41
EPC Wark 337.37 -
GHWL Interest on Sub Debt ralsed 2.266.12 2,043.93
Equity Portion of compound financlal instrument {Lozn) - 163.47
Liabilily Portion of compound financial instrument fLoan} - 136,43
Highway Maintenance Charges 706.01 526.52
Moblisation Advance pald for COS work 388.84
Change of Scope work 1,949.70 .
interest on compound financhal Instrument {Preference Shares) 1,191.77 1,076.74
GEPL Logo Fees and Trade Mark 0.01 0.01
‘Transaction with Feliow Subsidiarfas - .
___RSSL Isecutity Service Charges ] 132,77 74782

*

Reir of aTe not  In the above statement,

Transaction with Key Management Persgnnel §or the year ended March 31, 2018

Detalls of Xay Mansgarial Personnel Ramuneration o o
Short-term Post employ Cther long-t: Tarmination henefits Sitting fee Othess loansfadvances
employcrs benefits employes henefits recelvables

benefils
Mr. B.L.Gupta - - - - 125 - . -
Mrs

inita Tarachandani - - - - .90 - -
Mr.Chandrashekar 8, Manager - - - - .

Transaction with Key Menagomant Personnel for the year ended March 31, 2018

Cotalls of Key fal P | Remuneration Qutstanding
Short-torm Post employment Other long-term Termlnaticn henefits Sitting Fee Others loansfadvances
employee henefits ompioyee benefits recelvakles
Bonefits
Mr. B.L. Gupta - . - - 1.30 - -
Mers Vinita Tarachandani - . - - 1.50 - -
Mr.Chandrashekar B, Manager B9 - 1.1 -

Name of Entity Particulars As At As At
Muarch 31, 201 March 31, 2038
| Closing Balances with Enterprises that control the Company / exercise signlficant fnfluance
Equity Shares Qutstanding 205.00 205.00
GIL Equity Portion of compound financial instrument [Preference Share) 5.702.95 5,702.95
Liabsility Portion of compound financial instrument [Preference Share) 4,660.65 4,710.83
Trada and Other Sayables 983.00 1,044.86!
Equity Shares Quistanding 245.00 245.00
Equity Portion ol compound financlal instrurnent (Preference Share) 16,349.3% 16,349.31
Uability Portion of compound financlal instrument {Preference Share) 12,348.00 11,156.23
Gl;#WI. Equity Portion of compaund financlatinstriment [Loan) 29,255.49 25,255.4% i
Lisbility Portion of compound financial instrument {Loan) 23,479.45 2121333 :
Moblisation Advance paid for COS work 234,57 . :
‘Trade and Other Payables-COS . : 620.77 - ;
. - Trade ang Other Payables O&M 137.03 88.56) P
GEPL logo Fees ang Trade Mark 0.03 001 i
Closing with Fellow Subsidiaries :
Rsst Trade and Other Pavables 63.86 26777
Qther Deposit Recoverable 9.75 9.75.
GCAPI. ° Security/Qther Deposit Recoverable . 6516
GFFT Security/Other Deposit Recoverable 149.84 142.34
GPEL Trade gnd Olher Payables - 0.02
KSL {Trada and Other Fayables - .04

Commitments with related parties; As at year end March 31, 2019, there is no commiment utstanding with any of the celated parties other than those mentioned in Note no 29

Terms and conditlons of tramsactions with related parties

The transaction from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Cutstanding balances at the year-end arc unsecured and settlament eccurs in cash. There have been
no guarantees provided of received for any refated party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has not owad any amount by related parties s¢ impairment of receivables relating 1o
ameunts cwed by related partles does not arise. This assessment is undertaken ach financial year thraugh examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operatas.

For terms and condition related to Preference Share and Borrowing please refor Note no 11 & 13,
“37 Caphtal Management
The Company's capltal management is intended fo create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeling of long term and short term goals of the Company.

for the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capita) incfudes issued equily capital, Preference Share, loan from related parties and all other equity reserves attritulable to the enuity holders of the parent. The
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value.

The Comgany manages its capital structure and makes adjustmeats in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the linanctal covenants. Te maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company :
miay adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company includes withis net debt, borrowings, trade and other payables, iess cash and cash equivaients, kS

Amounts In INR takhs .

Particulars As At_March 31, 2019] As At_March 33, 2018
Berrowings other than converlible preference shares & related party 153,095.54 161,067.13
Total debt {i) . 153,055.54 163,067.13
Capltal Components )

Share Capital . 500.001 500.00
Other Eguity (45,722.98) {34,452.85)
Convertible preference shares {refer note 13) 17,008.65) 15,367.06
Loan fram related party 2347545 21,213 33
Total Capltal [ii} (4,744,88) 262154
Capitat and debt {i+fi} 14E,350.66 163,694.67

Gearing ratio {%)_(Ifill] 103% T}
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In order La achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amengst other things, alms to snsure that it meets financial tovenants atached to the interest-bearing loans and barrowings that deline
capital slructure reguirements, Breaches in meeting the fnancial covenants wauld permit the bank to immediately call Ioans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any inlesest-
bearing loans anil Lorrowing In the current period,

Mo changes were made in the ohjectives, pelicies or processes for managlng capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

Disclasures on Financial instruments - .

This section gives an overview of the significance of finandial instrements for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet {tems that contain financial instruments,

The details of signilicant accounting poficies, Including the criterla for recagnition, the basis of measurement and the basls on which Income and expenses are recagnised in respect of cach class of financizl asset,
financial abifity and equity instrument are disclased in Netes te the nancial statements.

{a} Financlal ussets and liabilitles

. lh_e faflowing Lables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets ard Babilities as at March 33, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

Amounts in INR Lakhs

Farticulars . As at Merch 31, 2019 As at Maxch 31, 2018

At Amortised Cost At FUTPL At Amortised Cost AL FVIRL

I Cost ] Falr Value Cost I £air Vaive

Assely
Investraent in Mutual Funds - - - -
Loans o Employees 068 - - 407 - -
Other Financial Assels ) 1.587.32 - - 2,339.65 - -
Cash and cush equivalems 1,522,662 - - 1,406.55 3 -
Total 3,110.62 - - 3,750.26 - -
LiabHitiey
Borrowings fnduding interest) 1%3,583.64 - - 197,647 52 B -
Trade Payable : 47,179.73 . - ) - 32,784.92
Other Financial Liabllity - - - - .
Tolat 240,763,356 - - 230,437.44 .

{b} Fair value hierarchy
Fhe fellowing table provides an analysis of financtal Instruments that are measured subsequent te initlal recogni

n st falr value, grouped into tevel 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Cuated prices in an active market (Level 1) This level of hterarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference 1o quoted prices (unadjusted) in active rmarkets loe idenlical assets or Habilities. This category
consists of invostinent in guoted egquity shares, and mutual fund invesiments, .

Valualion lechniques with absonable inpsts {Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than gueted prices included within Level 1 thal are obsurvable for thir
asset of Habikity, either ditectly {i.2., as prices} or Indirectly {Le., derived frem prices),

Vilustion technigues with significant unabservable Inputs {Level 3): This Javet of Ricrarchy includes financial assets and liabiities measured using inputs that are nol based on observabie market data funchservable
inputs). Faie values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation modet based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from abservable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are
ey based an availaidn market date.

nts fair value hierarchy of assets and Habilities measured at fajr vatue on a recurring hasis as of March 33, 2019:
Fair Value measurement at end of the roporting period/year wving

As at March 31, 7019 ' toveif Level 2 Level 3

v presents fair vatug hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at falr value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2018:

Falr Valus mensurement at end of the reporting perind/yesr using
As at March 31, 2018 teval Level 2 Level 3

Assets - -

I'inancial risk mapagement objectives and policies
ies, camprise horrawings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is o finance the Company's aperalions, The Company's principal financisl assets

Tha: Company's princpal nancial figbil
ts cash and cash cquivalests.

T the course of ils business, the Company's exposed to market risk, credit risk and fiquidity risk. The pany’s senior the managemant of these risks. The Company's senfer managenient s

*supported by i financial risk committee that advises on financlal rizks and the apprepriate financiat risk governance framewaork for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assuraace to the company's

senior management that the company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company's
policies otd tisk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

Market risk

Marked risk is the risk that the fair valve of future cash flows of a financlal instrumest will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markel zisk comprisas Lhree types of risk: interest rate risk, currency fisk and
commodily risk. Finangial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and Investment measured at FUTFL .

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate te the position as at March 31, 2019 and March 21, 2018

The sensitivity apalyses iave been  prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratic of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt are ali constant March 31, 2019,

The anwdyses exchude the impact ofmavumwnts tn market variables an: the carrying values of gratuily and nlhe: post-retirement obligations; provisions. The analysis fur the contingent consideration liability is provided in
Neote 38,

The fullowing assumptiens have been made in calculating the sensitivily enalyses:

P The sensitivity of the relevant profit or less tem 5 the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks, This is based on the financial assets and linancisd liabikitics held at March 31, 2019 Maich 31, 2018

interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fiuctuate hecause of changes in market interast rates. The Company's cxposure to the risk of changes in market interest
tates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with oating interest rates.

Tiw Comnpany’s palicy is to manage its interest cost using only interest frea/ fixed 1ate debts from selated parties.
Tha following table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably pessible change in Interest rates on that portion of {eans and barrowings affected, afler the impact of hedge accdunting. With all ether variables hetd
canstan, the Cesnpany's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

increase/ decreaso Effact on profit
in basks polnts before tax
INR Lakhs

Mar 31, 2018 °

INR +50 {796.80)

INR -50 796.80

Mar 31, 2018 N

INR +50 {785.49)

iR -50 786.44
Credit risk
Credit tisk is the fisk that ¢counterpariy will not meet its cbligations under & financial instrument or customer contract, qud:ng to a financia! ioss. With respect 1o credil risk arising from other financial assels of the
Company's, whichi comprise Cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances and investment, the Company's exposire 1o credit Hsk arises from default of the terparty, with i ] equal to Me carrying

amount of these instrumaent,
The carrying value of financial assels represents the maximum credit risk. The rmaximum exposure to credit slsk was Rs.3110.62 takhs and Rs.3750.27 Lacs as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively, being
the total carrying value of trade receivables, balances with bank, bank deposits and other financial assets.




GIVH Hyd: iay ys Private Limitad
Notes forming part of Financiaf Staternents for the as at March 31, 2018
UA5205KAXC0OPTCOS0102

3

4

a

9

e

=

Licuiidiny risk

Lisjuidity 1isk is delined as the tisk that the Company will not be able to selile ar meet its obligations an tme or at a reasonable price. The Company's troasury depariment is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as
settlement management. In addition, pracesses ang policies refated to such risk are overseen by senfor management, Management monitars the Company's net liguidity position through rolling forecas) on the basis of
expected cash flows,

The 1able below summarises tha maturity profile of tha company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years -_2-3 years 3.5 years More than & Years Total

Yeur ended
Mar 31, 2018
Teron Loan Irom Banks and Financial - 1350355 14,365.00 18,5%0.00 37,1B0.00 68,170.76 151,808.31
Institulion
Loan lrom Refined parties - - - - - 43,192.00 43,197 00
interest due but not patd on borrowkngs - 1.286.23 - - - - 1,266.23
Preferonco Shares at cost . - - - - - 25.752.74 28,752.74
Trade payables - 47,179.73 - - . - - 47,179.73
Othuer financial liabilities - - | - - - . .

= 51,959.51 14,365.00 18,590.00 37,180.00 141,115.50 27322001

. On Demand Within i year 1.2 yeats 2-3 yeass 35 years fore than & Years Total_

Year vintled
Mar 31, 2018
Term Loen fom Banks and Financial - 4,740.50 13,520.00 14,365.00 37,180.00 BB,81B.54 156,624.04
Institetion
Loian from Kelated parties - - - - . 43,192.00 43,192.00
lnterest due but net paid on borrewings - 4,535.78 - - - - A,535.78
Preference Shares at cost - - - - 29.752.74 25,750.74
Trade payables . - 32,652.93 - . - - 32,652.M
Other finwacial linbilities - 132.01 - . . . 13201

- 42 061.20 13,520.00 14,365.00 37,180.00 159,763.28 265 889 48

222 s Ao H] rter s,

Encessive risk concenteation

The Compuny heeds 1o assess the risks in refation te excessive risk concentration and the measures adogted by the Company te mitigate such risks,

Cancentrations afise when @ humber of counterparties are engaged in simifar business activities, or activities in the same grographical region, or have economic features that would causo their ahility to meet contractaal
obligations Lo be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other canditions. Cancentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the company's performance te developments affecting a particular industsy.

In-order e avoid excessive con of 5isk, the pany's paticles and di include specific guidelings to focus on the
controfled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the company to manage rlsk c fons at both tha ref

of a diversitied portfolic. id
ip and industry levels

d concentrations of credit risks are

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeahle losses as at Masch 31, 2019,

Sugment Hepurling
The Campany is engaged in the business of Construction, Gperation & Maintenance of Highways, This being the only segment, the regorling under the provisions of IND AS 10K { Segment information) does not arise.

Salient aspects of Service Concesslon Arangement

WHA his irrevorably granted te the Campany the exclusive right and during the jon perlad far designing, construction, d
Hyderabad Yijaywadys Section Trom Km 40.000 to Km 221,500 of NH-9 in State of Andra Pradesh.

finance, and mai of FourfSix faning of

NUAIgrants W the Concessionaite , to construct, operate and malntain the project from existing 2 lane 16 4 lane and later on to 6 laning (kefore 14th arniversary of appointed date). Concession perind is 25 years from
the appointed date. later, if sixTaning is not develeped (if so required by NHAl/desired by the Company), concession period will restrict to 15 years. {(which may be increased maximum by 3 years/decreased masimurn by
1.5 years depending upon lraffic and other terms of the concession agreement).

NHAL shail not constructfcause to be constructed any sdditional tolt way at any time before Bth anniversary of the appointed date. If NHAI contemplates opening additional Toli way between the 8lh and 15th
anzivedsary of Whe Appointed Date, the six-taning shall be cancelled and concession period will be extended beyond 15 years by the difference between the opening of additional Loll way and 151h anpiversary of the
Appaointed Jate. i the additional toll way is opened between 15th and 25th anniversary, the Concession Peried shall extend beyond 25 years by difference between the apening of adgitional tolf way and 25th
anversaty of the Agpolnted Date,

N fas further granted to the Company to enjoy, and oblige the Company to undertake the following (n accordance with the proviston of the cencession agresment, the applicable laws and the applicatle pesmil:

Hight of Way, access and license 1o the Site for the purpose of and 1o the extent confarred by the provisions of the Concession Agroement
linance and constouct the Project Highway
-manage, Operate and maintain the Project Highway and regutate the use thereof by third partias,

-derand, collact and appropriate the Fees from vehicles and users liable to payment of Fees for using the Project Highway o any part thereof and refuse entry of any vehide if the due is not paid.

*-perfusin and fulfit % of the cbligations under and in accordance with the Concession Agreement.

-bear and pay ali costs, and charges in ion with or Incidental to the performance of the Obllgatlons of the Company under this agreement.

-neither assig

transfer ar sublat or create any Hen er Encumbrance on the Concession Agreéement, or the Concession hereby pranted on the whole or any part ol the Project Highway nor transfer, fease or part
prossession therewith save except as expressly permitted by this Agreement or the Substitution Agreement.

Feus
The Connpany is entitled during the Operation Perlod to demant, collect and appropriate Fee from the Usets subject to and in accordance with this Agreement and the National Highway Fee [delermination of Kates and

Coltectinn} Rules, PUUR {the "Fee Rules™} previded that for ease of payment and colfection, such Fee shail be reunded off to the nearest 5 {five} ripees in accordance with the Fee Rulss; provided further that the
Comvessianaire may determine and collect Fee at such rates as it may, by public notice to the Users, specify in respect of all or any category of Users or Vehiclas,

The rate of Fee for use of a section of national highway of four or more lanes shali, for the base year 2007-08 is as follow:

Cost of periminent Bridge, Bypass or Tunnel Car, leap, Van or Light Light Commerclat Truck or 8us HCM, EME or MAV Oversired Vehicle
{Rupeesin Crare) Mpotor Vehicle Vehicle, light Goods
Mehicles o7 Mini Bus
e id 5.00 : 75 15 22 30
For tvery additional INR 5 crore or part thereof exceeding INR 15 Crore 2nd upto INR 100 1 1.5 3 45 6
Far tvery additional INR S erote or part thereof exceeding INR 109 Crore and tpto INR 200 0.75 115 2.25 3.4 4.5
For tyvery additional INR S crove or part thereof exceeding INR 200 Crore Q.5 0.75 1.5 2.25 3

The aboye tate shauld be increased without compounsing by 3% each year with effect from the 13t day of April, 2008 and such increased rate shail be deemed 10 be base rate for the subsequont years.
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The applicairi base tate sitall ba revised annually with effect frum Apaii 4 pach year to reflect the increase In wholesale price index between the week ending on Jankary 6, 2007 (i.e 208.7) and the wevk ending on or

tmmediately alter January 1 of the year in which such revision is underaken but such revision shall be restricted to 40% of the increase in Wholesale price index.
Applicable rate of Fee= Base Rater Base Rete X{ WPIA - Wil Bl X 0.4
WPIB

Exglanation: fur the purpese of this sub rale

{al applicatle rate of fee shafl be 1he rate payable by the user

(b} base 1ale shali be the rate specified In rule 4 resd with sub rule (1) of rule 5

[cIWFI A mcans the whelosale price index of the week ending on or subsequent to 15t January Immediately preceding the rlala of e
{d) Wit B means the wholesale price index of the waek eading on 6th January 2007 Le, 208.7

ion undar these rules

Annual revision of rale wader this rule shall be effective from Srst of Agril every year.

Loncession
In consileration of the grant of Concession under this Agreamunt, the Concessien fee payable by the Company to the NHA! is INR 1 per vear during the terms of the concession agreement.

The Company shall pay a premium in form of an additional concession {es aqual ta 32.6% of the total reallzable fee for 3rd year of concession period bul commencing from the day falling aller O (zero) days (ram COD.
For subseguent years, such percentage shall be increaced upwards by 1% for every year on each anniversery of Appointed Date. H the actual revenue from toll collectien is shart than projected realizable fee as
determined under the Concession Agreoment, the Company wifl be lfabile 10 pay concession fee based.on prejected realizahle fee so determined under the Concesslon Agreement.

1

Fee levied pd vollected from the traffic exceeding 120% of designated capacity |s also to be payabie ta NHAI every year

Dperation and Maintenance
The Carmpany shall operate and maintain the Project Highway either by ltself or through 08M Contractor and if required, madify, repair or otherwise make improvement to the Project Highway to comply with the
provision of the Concession Apreament, Applicable laws and Applicable Permits aad conform to Specifications and Standards and Good Industry Practice. The obligalions of the Concessionaire shouid nclyde:

it permitting safe, smooth and unintertupted fow of traffic an the Project Highway during normal aperating conditions,

i} vollecting ond approprioting the Fee.

iif} miaimizing distuption to traffic in the event of accidents or other incidents affecting the safety and use of the Project Highway by providing 2 rapid and effective response and maintaining lisison with emergency
services of the Stae,

) carrying aul periodic preventive maintenance of the Project Highway

v undedtaking rouline maintenance including prompt repairs of potholes, cracks, Concrete Joints, dralns; emb structures, marking, lighting, road signs and other traffic control devices

vi) undertaking majer maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, 1epairs 1o stzuctares, and repalts and refurblshment of tolling syslem and uther equipment,

vii) proventhig: with the assistance of concerned law enforcement agencies unavthorlsed entry W and exit from the Project Highway.

viii] preventing with the assistance of the concerned law enforcement agenties any encroachments en the Project Highway.

ix} protection of the epvironment and provision of equiament and materials therefore. )

x] operation nid maintenance of all communication, control apd administrative sysiem necessary for the effident operation of the Project Highway.

%{} raintaining o public refations unlt to Interface with and attend to sugpestions fram users of the Project Highway, the media, Governmont Agencies, and other externai ageacias,
i} complying with Safely Requirements in accordance with concession agrecment

Rawenie Shorttal Lean

" The company is cfigiblc for Revenue Shortfall {oan if “Reatisable Fee In any accounting year shall fall shart of the Subsistence Revenue 25 a resuit of an indirect Political £venl, a pofiticat event or an authority default”,

EF

Subnistence flevenue inean the 1otal of Fee revenve that is required by the concessionaire fn an accounting year to meet the sum of

a) ORI Papenses, subject to an annual ceiling of 3% of the Tota! project Cost plus Grant if any during the first accounting year after COD, to be revised lor cach subsequent year to reflect the variation in WPl uecurning
bolwewe O and ement of such ing year

) Bett Sevvice i such Accounting year but excluding any interest paid by the Authority.

Recenl accawiti

renouncements

Ini A5 116 Leases: On March 30, 2019, Minisury of Corporate Affairs has potified knd AS 116, Lesses which wili replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related laterprotations.
The Standacd sots out the principles for the recogniti ion and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 intreduces a single lessee accounting
matied and roguires a Iessec to recognize assets and liabilities for a!l leases with a term of more than tweive manths, unless the underlying asset ¥ of low value. Currently, opersting lease cxpenses are charged to the
statermunt of 1ofit & Loss. The Standard alco contalns enh. d [{ for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the Tessor accounting requirements in ind AS 17

The ettective dale for adoption of ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or aller april 1, 2015, The Company does not have any impact o account of this amendment,

ind A% 52 Appendic C, Uncertalnly over income Tax Treatments: On March 308, 2019, Minist:y of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind A5 12 Appendix €, Uncertainty over [ncome Tax Treatments which is Lo be appiisd while
perlapping 1he determination of toxable profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income 1ax treatments under tnd AS 12, According to the appeadiz,
companies need 10 determine the probabifity of the relevant 12x authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has 1o be
romsidvred ta compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax lassas, upused tax credits and tax rates, The eflcctive date for
Adepiian of ind AS 12 Appendix st annual periods beginring on or after Aprif 1, 2019, The Company does not have any Impact on adoptton of Ind A5 12 Appendix C.

Asavasimeni te b AS 12 — Income taxes 2 Cn March 30, 2018, Minlstry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments 10 the guldance In Ind AS 12, ‘intome Taxes', in connection with accountiag for gividend distitution
taxes, ue wnendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends In profit or loss, other comprehensive income o7 equily according to whare the enlity originally recoghised thoe
paszt transactions of evenls, EMective date for application of this amendment Is annual periad beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not have any impact this armendment on the ils financial statements.

Amendmunt to tad AS 19 — plan amcndmm\t curtailment or settlement- Gn March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affalrs issued amendments 1o Ind AS 19, *“Employee 8enefits’, in connection wilh accounting for plan
ilments and The d 1equire an entity to uyse updated assumptions to determine current service cast and net interast for the remaindar of the penad after 3 plan amendmens,
curtaiinient of setiement; and to recoghise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a galn or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised tecause of the impact
of the assut ceiting, Clfective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after Aptil 1, 2019, The Company does not have any impact op account of this amendment.
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43 Provious year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to this year's classification.

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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